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This torm 15 for use in nominating Or requesting determinations ot eligibility tor
individual properties or districts. See instructions in Guideltines for Completing
National Register korms (National Register Bulletin 16).  Complete each item by
marking "x" in the appropriate box or by entering the requested information. I[f an
item does not apply to the property being documented, enter "N/A" tor "not
applicable." For functions, styles, materials, and areas of signiticance, enter
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1. Name of Property

historic name Buckley, Patrick J., House

other names/site number = N/A

2. Location

street & number L101 Bucxiey Street N/A not tor publication
city, town Waukesha N/A viclnity
state Wisconsin code Wil county Waukesha code 133 zlp _code 53186

3. Classification

Ownership of Property Category of Property No. of Resources within Property
_X private _X _building(s) contributing noncontributing
___ public-tocal ___district L _1 buildings
____ public-State ____slte o __;_ sites
____ public-rederal _____ structure e _____ structures
____ Object o ______ bobjects

L L Total

Name of reiated muitiple property Listing: No. ot contriputing resources

previously listed in the
N/A National Register U




4, State/Federal Agency Certification

A5 the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966,
as amended, I hereby certify that this _Xnomination ___request for determination
of eligibility meets the documentation standards tor registering properties in the
National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional
requirements set forth in 36 CKR Part bU. In my opinion, the property X meets
___does not meet the National Reglster criteria. __ See continuation sheet.

/ i“21275<w4L_,—f’ O O o9y

e - »\_‘) )
Signé%uré’d@lcéiclryinq otricial bate
State Historic Preservation Officer-wI

State or Federal agency and bureau

ln my opinion, the property ___meets ____does not meet the National Register
criteria. _ See continuation sheet.
Signature ot commenting or other ofticial Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

5. National Park Service Certification fntered in the
I, hereby, certity that this property is: National Reglstem

entered in the National Register.
See continuation sheet

determined eligible for the National
Register. See continuation sheet

____determined not eligible tor the
National Register.

removed from the National Register.

____other, (explain:)

azfagkgnature ot the Keeper bate
b. Fkunctions or Use -
Historic Functions Current runctions
{enter cateqories from instructions) (enter categorles from instructions)

DUMESTLIC/S51ngle gwelling DUMBESTIC/single dwelling




1. Description

Architectural Classitication Materials
(enter categories from instructions) (enter categories from instructions)
toundation STONE
yueen Anne walls weatherboard
shingle
root ASPHALT
other wood

Describe present and hilstoric physical appearance.

The Patrick J. Buckley house is a large two-story-taii Queen Anne style dwelliing
that was built tor Buckley in 1894 as the second house in a subdivision Buckley had
platted the year betore known as P. J. Buckley's subdivision No. 2. This house is
located in the heart ofr this subdivision and is placed on a prominent corner 1ot
locatea at the juncture ot Buckley and Baxter Streets. fThis corner lot is shaded by
a number of mature trees ana the shape of the lot gives the house two principal
facades, the shorter of which faces southeast on to Baxter street and the longer of
which faces southwest on to Buckley Street. ‘The original hitching post of the house
is also still in place on the curbside. 'he corner placement is emphasized by a one-
story-tall wraparound veranda that encircles the south-racing corner of the house.
The house is cruciform in plan and 1s approximately forty-four-and-a-halt-feet-iong
and thirty-two-feet-wide. ‘he exterior walls rest on a tall cut stone foundatlion
and these walls are sided 1n clapboard and rise up to the combination gable and hip
root which covers the nouse. All four ot the gable ends ot this root are sided in
wood shingles and they stiil retain their elaborate and original wooden trim.

At the time this house was built Waukesha enjoyed a national reputation as a summer
resort due to its assiduous promotion ot the health-giving properties of the local
spring waters. fThis promotion began in 1868 and its success caused the tocal
population to increase from 2500 in 1870 to 874U by 1910. By the turn-of-the-
century, however, the economic importance ot the city's resort trade began to
decline and numerous manufacturing concerns were created to take their place,
transforming the city's economic base. This transformation, coupled with Waukesha's
close proximity to Milwaukee, greatly increased Waukesha's population which by 1980
numbered 53,941, making it Wisconsin's eighth-largest city.

Buckley was just beginning his career as a real estate dealer and land developer
when he built this house and he and his descendents continued to occupy it until
1985 when the current owners took possession. Because of this long tenure, the
house is in virtually original condition today. The present owners are in the
process of totally restoring the house, resulting in the preservation of a very fine
example of a house design frequently chosen by members ot the rapidly growing middle
class of this period. This restoration is aiso significant because many of the
similar examples ot this style in Waukesha have suftered major alterations due to
demographic changes wnich have turned many 1890s era subdivisions like this one into
inner city neighborhoods.

Buckliey's irregularly-shaped subdivision 1s pbounded by the Ko¥ Rl1ver to the
northwest, Dy White KoCK Avenle Co The 3joutheast, and by Hain street--one of the
principal thorougntares or the clty ot Waukesha--on the southwest. ‘he land which
torms the subdivision is part of a flood plain along the southeastern shore ot the
Fox River and this land is essentially flat until it nears Main Street at which
point it rises up sharply to higher ground. Even though the location of this piat

X See continuation sheet



NPS Form LU-Y00a

(Rev. 8-86) , :
Wisconsin Word Processor Format
Approved 2/87

United States Department of the lnterior
National Park Service

NAT1ONAL REGISTER OF H1STORLC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET

patrick J. Buckley House, waukesna, Waukesha County, Wisconsin
section number il rage __ /1.1

15 adjacent to the downtown commercial district ot Waukesha its proximity to the
river Kept 1t from being developea until Buckley platted 1t on November Z3, 1g3¥35.*

By that date the housing needs in the downtown area haa grown to the point where the
development ot this parcel had pecome desirable, and 1n tact, the location ot
Buckley's house 1s only one block away trom the Waukesha County Courthouse (NRHP-
1983) located at L0l W. Main sStreet, which was built in 18Y3. The lot Buckley chose
for himselt is H0-teet-wide by i58-teet-long, has an elongated pentagonal shape, and
forms the northeasterly corner of the intersection created by the juncture ot Baxter
and Buckley Streets. Most of tne ‘other lots in the subdivision also contain single
family dwellings dating from the 1890s to the 19ZUs althougn some ot these were
later converted into muitiple-unit buildings while others are now rental

properties. This trena away from single family ownership and occupancy has resulted
in a somewhat deterioratea builaing stock in the area and the Buckley house is now
one of the few to retain both 1its original use and original appearance.

The Buckley house is asymmetrical in appearance, cruciform in plan, is two-stories-
tall, and its design is an excellent example of the "hipped roof with lower cross
gables" subtype of the Queen Anne style identified by Virginia and Lee McAlester.?
In this instance the design consists of a hipped roof 22-foot-wide by 32-foot-deep
rectilinear plan main block which has a 16-foot-wide by 6-foot-deep polygonal-shaped
gabled ell on its southwest-facing elevation and a similar 16-foot-wide by 4.5-foot-
deep rectilinear ell on its northeast-facing elevation. fThe fourth arm of the
cruciform plan is formed by a large gable-roofed l6-foot-long by l8-foot-wide
rectilinear plan ell on the rear or northwest-facing elevation of the main block.
The entire house rests on tall, cut stone foundation walls made out of the almost
ubiquitous local limestone whose quarrying was one of Waukesha's principal
industries in the nineteenth century.® ‘''he foundation walls enclose the rull,
concrete-floored basement which underlies the whole house. ‘the original clapboard
siding covers all the exterior walls of the house up to the eaves and each wall's
surface area is enframed by corner boards, a wide frieze board located immediately
below the eaves, and a water taple which encircles the house just above the
limestone toundation. These walls then rise up to the steeply pitched, asphalt
shingle-covered combination gabie and hip roof which covers the attic tloor or the
house. Wwide overhanging eaves nelp to shelter the walls, and the ricge ot the
hipped roof main block runs front-to-back on a northwest-southeast axls and is
paraliel to the side elevations of the nouse.

1 Waukesha County Register of bDeeds, Waukesha, Wisconsin. Plat Book No. 4, P. 72.

“ McAlester, Virginia and Lee. A Field Guide to American Houses. Altred A. Knopf,
Inc., New York, New York, 1984. Pgs. 263-265.

3 Howard, Needles, Tammen, and Bergendoff. Spring City's Past: A Thematic History

of Waukesha and the Final Report of Waukesha's lntensive Resources Survey. Howard,
Needles, Tammen, and Bergendoff, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, 1982. Pgs. 15-16.
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T'he principal tacade of the house taces southeast onto Baxter Street. [t is
asymmetrical 1n composition and 1s two-bays-wide, and 1ts design 1s aominated by a
broad gabled wall dormer which covers much ot the right-hand portion of the front-
facing slope of the root, and by a canted main entrance vestibule which projects
outward at a 45* angle from the south (or lett-hand) corner of the tacade. With the
exception of the entrance vestibule, the wall surtace ot this facade is uniformly
flat and forms a continuous planar surtace. ‘his results in a rather plain design
which is relieved by running a wooden framing strip down from the left-hand corner
of the base ot the dormer in imitation of the corner board which descends from the
right-hand corner. This simple device gives this facade the appearance of having a
very shallow gable-rooted ell across much of its width and this device is made more
successtul by making the design ot the gabie end of the wall dormer identical with
the gable ends or the two genuine cross-gabied ells on the side elevations. ‘The
result is a successful imitation of the other cross-gabled ells and 1t nelped create
a more elaborate appearance with a minimum of expenditure.

This talse ell forms the right-hand bay of the main tacade and covers approximately
b60% of this tacade's width. It 1s surmounted by the aiready mentioned gable-roofed
wall dormer and by a tall brick chimney that is piaced to the rear of its right-hand
slope. This dormer has the same wide, overhanging eaves as the rest of the house
and its gable end is entramed by piain rake boards below the slopes of the roof and
by the main frieze board ot the nouse, which serves as the base of the tframe. A
single small, one-light, rectilinear window opening is placed in the center of the
gable end, the surface of which is covered with three courses of octagonal pattern
wood shingles below the window sill and with diamond pattern wood shingles above.
The principle decoration ot the gable end is the elaborate wooden gable ornament
which covers its upper half. fThis ornament was either purchased ready-made from a
sawmill or was constructed py the builder ot the house and it consists of a king
post truss, and the four spaces between the truss members are each filled with wood
decorated with perforated designs. Below the lower chord of the truss is an open
frieze band which is similar in appearance to the more common spindlework friezes
which decorate the porches found on many similar houses, only in this instance the
small pieces of wood used to connect the top and bottom moldings are made up on a
jigsaw, not on a lathe.' The lowest portion of this ornament cdnsists of a thin
wooden strip whose lower edge is serrated, and this strip is attached to the bottom
molding of the frieze.

A paired group ot one-over-one Light doubie hung windows is then centered 1n the
second tloor of this pay ana 1tsS cornice abuts Tne main trieze bhoard of tne house.
A large single-light window equal 1in Slze to the secona tloor pair 1s then placea
directly below 1n the first tloor ot this bay and two three-light rectilinear
basement windows then pierce the toundation wall directly below the tirst rloor
window.

The second (or left-hand) bay of the main tacade contains an asymmetrically placed
one-over-one light window on 1ts second floor while the first floor 1s without
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openings and teatures a canted, one-story-tail, riat-roofea entrance vestlibuie wWhich
projects outward in a southerly airection and at a 45° angle trom the main walls of
the house. fThis vestibule bisects the first fioor of the south-tacing corner formed
by the juncture oif the two principal tacades ot the house and 1t 1s rectilinear in
plan and is y-feet-wide by 4-feet-deep and each ot the three walis of the vestibule
is entramed with cornerboaras. ctentered in the south-tacing wall of the vestibule
is an excellent pair ot halt-glass and panelled double doors, each of which has two
rectilinear floating raised paneis in 1ts lower halt and a single light in 1ts upper
half. Hoth ot these s5ingle lLignhts consist ot a tall rectilinear panei ot etched
glass which has a decorative geometric border that enirames a design reaturing a
hanging basket rillied with plants, and each light is then entramed wlth elaborate
wood moldings which torm @ cornice above and a dentilculatea sill below.

The entire vestibule is sheltered by a wraparound wooden veranaa which encircles the
south corner ot the house betore terminating against the siae ot the southwest-
facing polygonal-shaped ell. ‘This veranda is divided into two distinct and unequal-
sized sections, and because the principal section respects the canted orientation of
the entrance vestibule while the shorter, shallower side section parallels the
southwest-facing side elevation ot the house, the resulting veranda has a V-shaped
plan. The principal section of the veranda covers the entrance vestibule and it is
rectilinear in plan and its roof is supported by six tail, thin turned posts, each
of which rests on a tall, turned plinth. A spindlework frieze then encircles the
upper portion ot the veranda just below the eaves of the veranda rooif, which is
flat, and has a pent roof encircling its outward-facing edges. The smaller second
section of the veranda is also rectilinear in plan and is 10.5-teet-long by 4-teet-
deep and its roof is identical in design to that ot the principal section and it is
upheld by two identical turned posts. ‘“The entire veranda was in deteriorated
condition when the current owners purchased the house in 1985, put it is being
gradually rebuilt using the original porch elements when possibie anc modern
reproductions when necessary.

The southwest-facing side elevation oif the Buckiey house taces onto Buckiey Street
and it is bisectea by a large polygonally shaped ell wnich is surmounted by a large,
gable dormer. This elevation 1s made up Or three separate elements. The right-hand
element is a mirror image ot the Lett-hand one on the maln tacade and has an
asymmetricaliiy placed one-over-one light window on 1ts second tioor whiie its tirst
tloor 15 without openings and teatures the cantec entrance vestibule aiready
describea. ‘'he two-story eil rorms the middle element ¢I tTnis elevation and gets
its poilygonal shape trom two ruil helght cutaway COrNers wioSe uppPermost portions
are each embellished by a pair or decorative wooaen spinadlework corner rriezes. ‘The
plan of this ell is that or a pentagon with unequal ilength sides. ‘'he rear or
inward-facing side is le-teet-wlae, the perpendiculiar lett-nand side is 5-feet-deep,
the perpendicular right-hand side is j-teet-deep, the front-tacing side is Y-feet-
wide, and each of the cutaway sices is 3-feet-wide. Both the perpendicular sides ot
the ell are without openings of any kind. ‘The lett-hand cutaway side of this ell
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has a single one-over-one-Light window on each ot its two tloors, while the right-
hand side has an identical window on 1tTs second tloOr and a single side entrance
door which is sheltered by the veranda roof on its tirst floor (this door may be a
later alteration or an earlier window opening). ‘he rirst tloor of the southwest-
facing side of this ell has a single large one-light rectilinear window centered on
its tace which is identical to the one found on the main tacade. Centered on the
second floor just above is a narrower one-over-one-light window.

The left-hand portion ot the elevation torms the southwest-facing side wall ot the
two-story-tall rear ell. This wall is two-bays-wide and is asymmetrical in
composition. The tirst tloor of the right-hand bay contains a side entrance door
wnich opens into the kitchen of the house, and there is a one-over-one-light double
hung window above this door in the second floor above. ‘the lett-hand bay nhas a one-
over-one-light double hung window on 1ts first rioor and a smaller one-over-one-
light double hung window on its secona tloor. Hoth this side entrance door ana the
first floor window in the lett-hand bay are sheltered by a raised, shed-rootfed, one-
story-tall open porch. ‘the porch root is supported by two turned posts which are
identical in size and design with those used on the wraparound veranda, and a single
portion of the spindlework trieze which was originally placed just below the porch
eaves still survives under the porch's northwest-facing eave.

The northwest-tacing rear elevation of the Buckley house is comprised ot the rear
wall of the gable-roofed two-story-tall rear ell and the blank side walls of the two
cross-gables. This elevation is thus much less elaborate than the other eievations.
The rear wall of the northwest-facing ell is two-bays-wide and asymmetrical in
composition. f“he right-handa of the two bay has a single one-over-one-light double
hung window on its first floor and no openings above, while the left-hand bay has no
openings on its first tloor but has a single one-over-one-light double hung window
on its second floor. ‘'The gable end above the second floor is sided in the same
clapboard that is used to side the rest of this elevation and contains no openings
of any kind. The roof above the gable end has the stump ot a once taller brick
chimney emerging from its ridge.

The tourth and tinal elevation ot the nouse taces northeast and its less public
aspect resulted in a less elaborate design than the otherwise very similar southwest-
tacing tacade. YThis elevation 1S alsc pisected by a two-story ell which is
surmounted by a large gable, and the composition ot this elevation is also comprised
of three separate elements. ‘the right-hand element is two-pays-wlde and two-stories-
tall and it torms the northeast-tacing side wall ot the rear eli. ‘This wall's right-
hand bay contains no openings whlle the basement and tirst tlioor portions ot the
left-hand bay are covered by a small 4.5-foot-wide by 6.5-toot-long rectilinear plan
shed roofed entrance vestibule which has a tive-panelled door on its rear wall and a
small, single light window on its northeast-facing wall. This vestibule is sided in
clapboard and is positioned in the space tormed by the perpendicular juncture of the
side wall of the rear ell and the side wall of the cross-gable ell. Above this
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vestibule, in the second fioor ot the pay, 1S a one-over-one-iight double hung
window. ‘The cross-gable ell that torms the middie element ot this elevation has a
rectilinear plan and is lé-teet-wide by 4.5-teet-deep. Both or the perpendicuiar
sides of this ell are without openings of any Kind while the tirst tioor of the
front-tacing side ot the el! has a single one-over-one-11gnt rectiiinear-snaped
double hung window centerea on 1ts tace which is identical to the one centered on
the second floor just above 1t. ‘'lhis ell 1s then surmountea by a large gable
identical to the one on the main tacade. ‘the lett-hand portion ot tnis elevation 1s
one-bay-wide and 1t also has & single one-over-one-light doubie hung window centered
on its tirst 1i00r and an identical one centered on the secona rloor just above it.

I'ne asymmetrical aesign of the exterior ot the house 15 retlected in the pian oif the
excellent and extremely weli-preserved 1nterior. kntrance to the 1nterior 1s gainea
by passing through the outside entrance doors 1nto tne vestibule, which opens
directly into a stairnall which occupies the southwest tnira or the trront portion ot
the tirst tfloor. Yo the right of the stairs a pair of double doors open into a
front parlor which occuples the rest ot the tront portion of the rioor while a door
at the rear ot the stairhall opens into a back parlor which occupies the southwest
half of the houses' midsection. ‘he rest ot the midsection is occupied by a dining
room while the rear ot the first floor is occupied by the kitchen, and the rear
stairhall. Yhe seconda floor contains four bedrooms and a bathroom. Fortunately,
almost all of the original woodwork and decorative features of the house have
survived intact and the first floor is especially notable tor the high quality of
the varnished woodwork that is tound in each of its rooms.

The stairhall is approximately Lé-feet-long by 6-feet-wide and an open flight of
stairs runs up the the southwest (outside) wall of the hall to a landing and a
second--and shorter--closed fiight then makes a right turn and runs up the rear
(northwest) wall to the second floor. 'This staircase is notable for its fine
starting newel and landing newel, each ot which has a tall square base, a square
shaft decorated with small corner columns, and a tall, tluted, solid wooa cap. ‘he
design of each newel 1s similar put the starting newel is more massive and richly
decorated, the tour taces or its shatt each being both tluted and surmountea with
carving, while the design ot the ilanding newel is simpler and somewhat more
exuberant in torm anda its cap 1s topped with an urn-shaped rinial. ‘'ne nhand rait
assembly that connects the newels 1S supported by thin center-turnea square-top
balusters, all of which are also varnished as are the risers, ireads, anc walil
stringers. ''he outer enas 0ot tTne r1sers are then tinisnea DY Open StIingers. ‘the
corner of the .triangular-shape¢ spandrel that 1S rormea DY the 1NTErSecrion Or the
open string with tne wice paseboard that encircties the pase or the stairhall 1s
filled by a varnished wood panel whose surtace 1is completely covered by & aeeply
carved radiating sunburst aesign. The vertical casing that compietes the frame of
this triangular panel is a shortened, but otherwise identical portion of the casings
that surrounds the’'doors and windows in the .-principal rooms on this floor. This
casing 1is enriched with a riuted and beaded design and has a plinth block at its
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pase ana is surmounted by a corner DLOCK decorated wWilth a patera design. Lln the
stairhall this casing entrames tne outside entrance doors, the varnished tour panel
door of the coat closet that 1s rramed into the enclosed space pbeneatnh the stairs,
an identical door that opens into the pack parlor ana that 1s placed on the rear
(northwest) wall ot the hall, and the large double doors on the northeast wall ot
the hali that open into the rront parior. The hall 1s i1t py an early and probably
original hanging lamp whose metal tramework is decorated with tour orange-colored
glass pendants, and its single downward oriented light socket 1s set in the center
of a stylized metal flower.

The large varnished four panel doupble doors that open into the lZ-toot-wide by 16-
toot-deep front parlor are pocket doors and both still retain their original cast
metal door pulls covered in elaborate designs showing tiowers growing unaer the

sun. The dominant teature of the tront parlor is the elaborate and totaliy originail
mantlepiece on the northwest wall. Both the outer hearth and the tireplace surrouna
of this fireplace are covered in small, rectilinear-shaped, glazed ceramic tiles
surtaced in a mottled brown and cream colored pattern, and the tireplace opening
itself is enframed by a cast iron insert decorated with a raised garlana pattern.
The fine wood mantelpiece has a turned colonette at each ena that helps support the
mantle shelf and the whole is then surmounted by an elaborate wood overmantel having
a large bevelled mirror in its center that is tianked by two smaller side mirrors.
Bach of the side mirrors has a shelf placed just below it supported by carved
brackets and a second shelf placed above 1t supported by a palr oi thin, turned
colonettes whose bases rest on the lower shelves. A third shelf is then placed over
the center mirror and the shelf is supported by intricately carved legs that rest on
the two upper shelves.

A single door to the lett of this rireplace -opens 1nto the back parlor. ‘This room
occupies the first tiocor ot the polygonal ell and its windows look out onto Buckley
Street. The walls of this approximately l6-toot-wide by l¥-toot-deep room--like the
front parlor and the entrance hail--are still covered in older wallpaper dating from
the Buckley family's tenure. A tfine brass chandelier hangs trom an elaborate
plaster rosette in the center ot the ceiling and its lLong, curved arms alternate
between having downward and upwara pointing light sockets, each ot which has a glass
shade whose scalloped edges are rose colored and whose body is cream colored.

A singlie door placea 1n the northwest wali ot tne baCk parior opens 1nto the kitchen
while a double-width opening 1n the northeast-tacing wall or the back parior opens
into the t6-toof-wlae py approximately lZ-toot-deep dlning room that occuples the
first floor of the northeast-facing ell. fThe le-toot-long by lZ-foot-wide kitchen
has been partially remodeled by the present owners who have retained much ot the
original wood trim even as they have added more modern appliances and cabinetry. A
second side entrance door exits trom the kitchen onto the side porch and another
door on the northedst wall opens into the rear hail.
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Both the rear stairs and the main stairs lead up to the second floor wnich has four
bedrooms opening ott a center nall. The position ot these rooms corresponds to the
position of the principal rooms of the floor below and the wood casing that frames
all the doors and windows on the second tloor 1s identical in pattern to that used
on the first floor except that there are also transom lignts above all the second
tloor doors and all the wooawork on this tioor has been painted.

The present owners of the Buckley house are tortunhate to have acquirea a house which
had been in the possession ot the same tamily for so long. More than anything else
this single fact explains why not on.ly the most important features ot the house are
still intact, but also why so much ot the original hardware--such as that pDelonging
to the doors and windows--1s sSCTlll extant. gspecially notable tor having survived
is the complete collection of tine metal griils that cover the outlets or the
central heating ducts set into the basepoards ot the rooms on the f1rst rioor.
Uther equatly rine grills are also set 1nto the ilOOIS 0L The second ri0Or rooms tToO
tacilitate the gravitational tlow of heat from the tirst floor. ‘fhe retention of
these grills and all the other original teatures makes the Buckiey nouse one or
Waukesha's most complete examples of the Queen Anne style.

The only other associated building on the property is a small gable-rooted,
rectilinear plan, one-car garage that was built on the southeasteriy L/Z or Lot lli,
which lies adjacent to the northwestern end ot the lot the house sits on. ‘his
garage is of frame construction and is sided in clapboard, and it has an asphalt
shingle-covered roof whose ridge runs southwest-northeast and its principal opening
faces southwest on to Buckley Street. A vertical line on the siding of the two side
walls of the garage reaches from the eaves to the concrete floor pad and indicates
where two different sections of clapboard siding butt together. As the only windows
on these sides are small six light windows that are positioned in the exact center
of the longer of the two sections of siding, it seems likely that the length of the
garage was extended at some point. The date ot construction of the original portion
is uncertain but the garage dces not appear on the 1922 Sanborn-rerris fire
insurance map and does appear on the 1927 map so a date between these two is
probable.* ‘Thls garage is in just fair condition today and it is considered to be a
non-contriputing resource because ot 1ts condition and because ot 1ts having been
substantially aitered.

* Sanporn-Perris Kire lnsurance Maps of Waukesha, Wisconsin. Sanborn-Perris Map
Company, New York, New York, 19272 and 1927.



8. Statement of Significance
Certifying official has considered the signitricance of this property in relation to

other properties: nationally statewide X locally
Applicable National Register (Criteria A B X C b
Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) A B C D E 3 G

Areas ot signiticance
(enter categories from lnstructions) rerioa ot Signiticance signiticant vates

Architecture 1394 1894~

Cuitural Argifiation
N/A

signiticant Person : Architect/Builder
N/A unknown

State signiticance ot property, and justitfy criteria, criteria considerations, and
areas and periods ot signiticance noted above.

signiticance

The patrick J. Buckley house is peing nominated to the National Register ot Historic
Places (NRHP) for its local significance under Nationali Register (NR) criterion C.
More specitically, the Buckley house is being nominated because of its association
with the area of Architecture; a theme which is also identifiead in the State of
Wisconsin's Cultural Resource Management Ptan (CKMP). Research was undertaken to
assess the NRHP potential of the Buckley house utilizing the Queen Anne style
subsection ot the Architectural Styles study unit or the CKMP ana the Queen Anne
subsection ot the Architecture ‘fheme section of the tinal report of the waukesha
Intensive Resources Survey. ,‘fhe results ot this research is detailed below and
contirms that the Buckley house 1s locally significant under NR criterion C as a
tine and highly intact example of a middle-sized residence designed in the Queen
Anne style.

The house was bulit for Patrick J. Buckley, who began nis working career in Waukesha
as a blacksmith and graduaily bullt up a second career as a local real estate
developer. ‘hls house was the second to be built in Buckley's just-platted pratrick
J. Buckley Subdivision No. 2, located between the Fox River and Main Street, and
Buckley sited hls house in the center ot this subdivision on the northeast corner ot
Baxter and Buckley Streéts (which he aiso named tor himself}. 'fhus, Buckiey's new
house servea both as an advertisement ror nis new piat and as a symbol or his own
newly won success besides providing a home for himseit, his wite ana their

ch:iaren. Arter Huckley's aeatn, the nouse was i1lved 1n Dy nis son, Jonn .
Buckiey, until his death in lYbb, and then by a nlece, glleen Koach, untii ner deatn
in 1385, fhese successlve generations ot the family maintained the house in an
uncnanged state throughout their ownership. As a result, the present owners were
able to purchase it in virtually original condition ana they are now in the midst ot

® The Waukesha Freeman. June 23, 1894, Pg. 8; July 26, 1894, Pg. 8; August 9, 1894,
Pg. 8. ’ :
X See continuation sheet



NPS Form LU-YUua

(Rev. 8-86)

Wisconsin Word Processor Format
Approved 2/87

United states bepartment ot the Interior
National Park Service

NATIONAL REGIS'TER OF HISTORLIC PLACES

CONVINUATION SHEET

ratrick J. Buckley House, Waukesha, Wwaukesha cCounty, wisconsin
Section number 8 Page 3.1

an extensive restoration program wilch nas Deen scrupulous in 1ts adherence to the
original design. Consequently, both the interior ana exterior ot the Buckley house
are significant today as fine and highly intact examples of Yueen Anne style
residential design. ‘'ne fact that this house 1s.located in an area which is
increasingly threatened by shitting demographic patterns ana where nearly all the
houses ot the same vintage have been signiticantly altered, makes this restoration
project all the more important tor the neighborhood.

Historic Context

A general nhistory ot the city ot Waukesha is containea 1n ooth tne trinal report ot
the Waukesha lntensive Survey® ana in the text or the Historic Resources of Waukesha
Multiple Resource Nomipnation torm.‘ C(onsequently, the following historical
background deals mostly with ratrick J. Buckley and nhls tamily and witn the area
surrounding the nhouse.

The low Lying polygonalily shaped parcel ot land that ratrick Huckley acguired for
his subdivision in 1892 was located on the southeasterty shore of the rox River ana
haa long been owned by men assoclated with the beginnings ot Waukesha. 1n 1873 this
land was owned by Alexander ¥. Pratt, one ot Waukesha's pioneer settlers and one ot
the tour Waukesha commissioners on the original 1847 nine-member boara ot the
Milwaukee and Waukesha Railroad--wisconsin's first.® Pratt subsequently became the
proprietor ot the Waukesha County bemocrat in 1865, which was renamed the Waukesha
Plain Dealer after an earlier newspaper he nad owned in Waukesha, and he continued
to edit this paper until his death in L874.% Pratt's riverfront property was
originally bounded by Bridge Street (now Barstow Street) on the southwest, Main
Street on the south southeast, Vermont Street (now white Rock Avenue) on the
southeast, and by Dousman's Addition to the northeast, and during the period of
Pratt's ownership this land was unplatted and no structures were built on it due to
its location along the Fox River, which at this point acted as the storage pond for
the dam associated with the grist mill (non-extant) located a tew hundred yards
downstream. The close proximity of this area to the downtown commercial district of
Waukesha, however, meant that others platted and developed the higher, more valuable
ground which encircled the perimeter ot Pratt's property. ‘'ne edge ot this higher
ground was an earlier river bank and that portion that lay aajacent to Pratt's land

¢ Howard, Needles, Ytammen, anc Bergendofi. Spring City's Past: A ''hematic History
ot Waukesha ang the kinal Report ot Waukesha's intensive Kesources Survey. Howard,
Neeales, ''ammen, and Hergenaorr, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, LY8Z.

/ Ibid. Hlstoric Resources of Waukesha Muitiple Resource fomination torm.
September, 1Y84. OUn tile at the State Historical Society ot Wisconsin Historic
Preservation bivision in Madison, Wisconsin.

® plat Book of Waukesha County. 1873, Pg. Z3.

% Howard, Needles, "lammen, and Bergendotf. -Spring City's Past: A thematic History
of Waukesha and the kinal Report of Waukesha's intensive Resources survey, Pg. 18,
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along the nortnwest side or Main Street constitutea a Strip of land that faced the
1849 Waukesha County courthouse (non-extant) and tne St. Matthias wpiscopal church
{NRHP-1983) bullt in 185i. ‘Thls strip was plattea as part or the much larger Gale
Barstow ana Lockwooa's Plat while a similar strip ot i1anag along vermont Street was
platted as a part or the much larger bousman's Addition andg Dy L8/35 a number of
nouses had been bullt along both sides ot these streets. Pratt himselr was also
involved in the ownershlp ana development ot other land nearby which centered on the
eponymously named Pratt street (now Arcadlan Avenue) and on caroline Street.
Following Pratt's death, his riveriront property was acqulred by Morris D. Cutler
(1810-1897), waukesha's first settler and a major landowner 1in the city. buring the
period of Cutler‘s ownership the oid dam (located nhear today's 390 W. Main Street)
was demolished and a new dam (extant) was built across the river just upstream
(east) trom Bridge (now Barstow) Street and this dam's eastern end was rounded on
Cutler's property. ''his was the only structure built on this land during Cutler's
ownership and Cutler deeded the land surrounding nis end or the dam as the Mill
Reserve and it remained as such even atter Patrick J. Buckley acquired the rest ot
Cutler's property in 1892.

Patrick J. Buckliey (1i8b7-1941) was born in Roxbury, Massachusetts and was the son ot
Timothy Buckley and Anna Keogh Buckley, both oif whom had emigratea from Ireiand.*°
At the age of nine, Buckley came to Waukesha and he resided in that city for the
rest of his life. He began his working career in Waukesha as a blacksmith and his
shop (non-extant) was located between Main Street and Broadway on a site that was
later occupied by the Avalon Hotel. Buckley later married Katherine Gannon and they
lived in a house on 218 Barnard Street (now 400 Randall Street) and had three sons--
rimothy, Patrick H., and John ¥.. Blacksmithing remained Buckley's occupation until
1891, when a special edition ot the Waukesha bLispatch published a wood engraving ot
Buckley with the caption "petective Patrick Buckiey."** ‘'he toliowing year Buckley
began the career in real estate that ne would tollow until nis retirement in 19Yz0.

Une ot Buckley's earliest projects invoived the acgquisition ot the Lana along the
Fox River owned by Morris D. Cutler. Small portions of the acjacent plats were aiso
aaded to tiils land and the resulting tour block plat was surveyed ana recorded on
November Z3, 1893 as ¢Y. J. Buckley's subdivision No. /. bBuckley's partner 1n this
venture was 1'. Edward kRyan (1359Y-1ivll), a local attorney who had moved with nis
parents to nearby rewaukee trrom wasfiington Lounty, N.Y. 1n 1847/ and was already welil
on his way Co becoming a SUCCeSStul ang popular Waukesna citizZen. Ryan graduatea

+Y peath Certitlcate of Patrick J. Buckley. Ueath Records. Waukesha County
Register ot beeds, waukesha County Courthouse, Waukesha, Wisconsin. Voi. 31, Pg.
556.

++ The Waukesha Dispatch. April 2z, 189L. ‘''he Waukesha City Directory tor 1890-1891
lists Buckley's occupation as a horseshoer while the 18492 City Directory lists him
as a "special agent."
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trom the University ot Wisconsin Law school 1n L38%5 ana entered 1nto practice in
wWaukesha with Judge P. H. Carney 1in the tirm of Carney and Ryan. After tour years,
Ryan tormed a partnership with Ernst Merton ana the firm ot Ryan and Merton (liater
Ryan, Merton, Newberry, and Jacobson) soon became one ot the top law firms in
southeastern Wisconsin. Ryan was also active in Democratic Party politics and this
led to his being nominated tor tne positions of Attorney General ot Wisconsin in
1§88, U. S. Congressman in 1892, and Governor ot Wisconsin in 1898. In recognition
of his party service, Ryan was appointed the Postmaster of Waukesha by President
Cleveland in 1895 and he served in that position until 1899.:+<

The full extent of Buckley's association with Ryan 1is unknown. Surviving tax
records continued to list unsold lots in Buckley's subdivision as being jointly
owned by Buckley and Ryan untili at least 18Yb, but by L8YY the ownership or these
lots had been divided between them and it 15 not known whether or not the tWo men
had further deailings ot this Kind. Never-the-less, Buckley's tirst experience as a
real estate deveioper led him to pursue real estate as a career and he establisned
an otiice on the corner of Main and Broadway betore moving 1t into nhis new home when
that building was finished c.l1894. 'This new career put Buckley on a solid footing
in waukesha and he later served two terms as alderman trom the ‘Whird wara of that
city (the ward surrounding his Buckley Street home) in the 1Y91Us and he was one of
the tounders of the Waukesha lodge of the HBrotnerhood of klks fraternal
organization. After Buckley retired trom active work in 1920, he continued to live
in his house at 1101 Buckley Street, ana atter his wite's death, his sons and
numerous other relatives lived in the house with him until his death in 1941.+*3

Seven years betore his death, Buckley deeded over a share ot his house to his son,
John. John F. Buckley (1892-1965) had been born in the famiiy's previous house on
Barnard street just before the family built ‘1ts new nouse on the other side of the
river. He was educated in the Waukesha schools and graduated first from Carroll
College and then from the University of Wisconsin Law School in 1915. He
subsequently practiced law in Waukesha and was elected to the state assembly from
that city in 1916 and 1918. Buckley never married and since the location of the
family house one block away trom the county courthouse was convenient for him, he
chose to live there with his tather and other relatives from at least 1Y¢' until his
own death. Buckley gradually became a well-known and respected tiqure in Waukesha
and was later elected to a term as the president ot the waukesha County Bar
Assoclation. In his later years he practicea law in association with Albert ¥. Heck
Jr. as the senior partner 1n the tirm Ot Beck and Buckliey, and tor a time their
associate was future waukesha City Attorney John P. Buckley, a son of Buckiley's
brother, Patrick. buring the period of John K. Buckley's ownership the tramlly house
remalned unaltered and was malntained 1n 1ts original condition. (n 1Y57, Buckley
continued the earlier practice ot his tather by deeding shares in the fhouse to his

1< The Waukesha bispatch. Juiy 20, 19ii. Pg. L. ubituary ot Yimothy E. Ryan.
+? Waukesha Daily ¥reeman. August 1, ly4l. Pg. L. OUbltuary ot Patrick J. Buckley.
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prother Patrick H. Buckley and nhis wite Gertrude, and to his cousln bkllieen k. Koach,
who lived in the house with nim untii his aeath 1in L%65.+=

kileen Buckley Roach (18YZ2-1Y85>) was a litelong Waukesha resident who, as Elieen
Buckley, hao itived in the ramlly house once petore, 1n 1Y1Y, at which time she was
employed as a milliner. Subsequently, sne operated a hat shop in the knterprise
pepartment store 1n Waukesha tor many years. KEventually she moved back 1nto the
tamily house ana atter John . Buckley dled she continued to iive there until ner
own death in 19Ysb at wnich time the housSe was so.ld to 1TSS present Owners.=*~

Archltecture

Yhe architectural signiticance ot the Patrick V. Buckley house lies in its being an
excellent representative example of the middle-sized Queen Anne style residences
that formed a major portion ot the miadle class buliaing stoCk ot the city ot
Waukesha and other Wisconsin cities between 188U and 190U, and this signiticance is
considerably enhanced by the nigh degree of inteqgrity which is still present in the
fabric of the Buckley house today. The designer and the builder of this house may
well have been one and the same, and while thelr name(s) are unknown the design
makes good use of the "irregularity of plan and massing" and the "asymmetrical
facade"” compositions which are halimarks ot the Queen Anne style that are
specifically mentioned in the Queen Anne style subsection of the Architectural
Styles study unit of the CRMP.*® The design of the Buckley house also makes sparing
use of such typically Queen Anne style elements as variegated exterior surface
materials, "wall projections," '"steeply pitched roots," "cutaway bay windows," a
"dominant front-facing gabie," and a "wrap-around veranda"; all of which are also
mentioned as specitic attributes of the Queen Anne style in the CRMpP.

The Waukesha Intensive Survey Report identitied buildings designed in the (ueen Anne
style as important components of the nineteenth century building stock in Waukesha
and the report enumerated numerous examples of the style which are mostly
concentrated 1n residential neighborhoods located close to the downtown commerciail
district.*’ Many of these buildings were subsequently incorporated into the tirst
tour nistoric residential districts which the survey identitled and ultimately
placed on the NRHP late 1n 1Y¥3.+® These districts were the tirst areas ot waukesha
+% Waukesfna pally rreeman. Novemper i&, iYbb. oUbituary 0i John F. BUCKiey.

+= Ipid. rebruary /48, Llys>. ubltuary ot Elleen ¥. Roach.

‘= Wyatt, Barpara (ka.). Cultural gesource Management 1n Wisconsin. Historic
Preservation bivision, State Historical Society ot Wisconsin, Madison, Wisconsin,
1986.. Vol. 2, 2-1b (Architecture).

+7 Howard, Needles, ‘lammen, and Bergendotf. Spring City's Past: A ‘lhematic History
of Waukesha and the Kinal Keport of wWaukesha's intensive Kesources survey. Howard,
Needles, ‘lammen, and Bergendoti, Milwaukee, ‘Wisconsin, 1982. Pgs. 106 and Lll.

18 These districts are: The College Avenue Historic District; the Latiin Avenue

Historic District; the McCall Street Historic District; and the Wisconsin Avenue
Historic Dlstrlct.
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to pe distinguished in thls manner, put the Intensive S5Survey aiso tound other groups
of similar bullaings and a number or 1nhdividual exampies which 1t consiaered to Dbe
potentially eligible tor tuture designation. A number of these individual buildings
were incorporated into the Historic Resources or Waukesha Multiple Resource
Nomination in October ot 1Yyss and were subsequently placea on the NRHP. Among these
buildings were several good exampies ot middle-sized Queen Anne style residences
similar in size and elaboration to the Buckley house incluaing: the Perry Grace
house, 307 N. West Ave., built c. 1885; the Camillia Smith house, oU3 N. West Ave.,
built in 1883; the Dwinnel house, 442 W. College Ave., buiit between 1885-1890; and
the kobert O. Jones house, bUL1 W. College Ave., built c. 18Y8.

‘The choice ot the Patrick J. Buckley house as one ot the first of the second group
of Waukesha builldings to be adaded to the original 1983 Waukesha MRA nomination is
principally due to 1ts high degree ot inteqrity; the legacy or its ninety years of
ownership by mempers ot the Buckiey tamily. ‘'this high degree ot integrity is ot
importance because, while similar houses were once tairiy widespread 1n Waukesha's
older neighborhoods, most ot them are now threatened by changes in occupancy and
usage and examples with the same degree of intactness are pecoming very rare. ‘lhus,
the Buckley house is signiticant today as an excellent example ot a house type
associated with the middie class of its day, a type that was and is important in
Waukesha. 1ts 1ntact survival 1s especially important because it is hoped to use
the house as a model for other restoration activities in 1ts neighborhood.

Whether any archeological remains are extant on this site 1s unknown at the present
time. No intormation was discovered during the course ot this research that
suggests that any previous buildings ever occupied this site and early maps (1873,
1891) of the city that depict buildings on surrounding plats show nothing on this
one. Neither was any information discovered during this research that suggested the
possibility of extant remains dating from pre-European cultures or from prehistoric
periods being uncovered trom this site. Given that this iot and this plat are
located on a flood plain which is immediately adjacent to the Fox River, however, it
is unlikely that many early remains would have survived the periodic inundations

the site must have sustained before the river was dammed.
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Verbal Boundary Description

Lot 12, Block A, P. J. Buckley's Subdivision No. 2 in the Village (now City) ot
Waukesha, Waukesha County, Wisconsin. In Section NE3 T6N RLYE.
See continuation sheet

Boundary Justitication

The boundaries enclose all the tand that has been historically assoclated with
the Buckley house.
_See continuation sheet
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